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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Strategic Report

For the year ended 31 December 2020

The Directors present their Strategic Report together with their report and audited consolidated financial

statements of Quantum Holding Topco Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The company was incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales on 1 July 2018,
Principal activities
The Company is a holding company and the principal activity of its subsidiary undertakings is that of software

guality assurance consultancy, serving international clients from Its offices in the United States, United
Kingdom, Israel and India.

Results and performance

The figures set out In these financial statements are reported in USD thousands ($'000) unless otherwise
stated. The functional currency of the Group's subsidiaries varies across the subsidiaries mainly between
United States Dollar, British Pounds Sterling and New Israeli Shekel. The results of the Group for the current
year, as set out on page 13, show a loss before tax of $57.6m (period ended 31 December 2019: a loss before
tax of $37.1m). The shareholders’ deficit of the Group total $95.6m (2019: $33.6m).

Key Performance Indicators

The Group uses a number of metrics to manage the business. The key metrics are shown below.

Year ended 31 Period ended

December 2020 31 December

2019*

Revenue $188.1m $52.4m
Operating loss 5(17.1)m 5(25.6)m
Headcount {average) 2,784 3,078

*The Group was not trading until the point of acquisition of Jupiter Topco Limited on the 3™ October 2019,
The performance af the Group during 2019 was in line with expectations,

Future developments

The Group intends to continue operating in the area of software testing and to identify organic and inorganic
opportunities for international growth,

Long-term expectations are for significant growth in the software testing market and the Group is well
positioned to capitalise on this and deliver profitable growth.

The Group is closely monitoring the implications of Covid-19 and associated risks and opportunities. During
2020 the Group had experienced a modest reduction of revenue compared to expectations. Based on our Q4
2020 results and outlook for 2021, we see and are expecting a strong recovery. Directors continue to monitor
the situation as there are further developments. Further details regarding management’s assessment of the
implications of Covid-19 can be found in the going concern section of the significant accounting palicies in the
financial statements {note 3.3).
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Principal risks and uncertaintles

The Group delivers software testing services across a variety of different market sectors and geographic
locations including Europe, North Amaerica, Asia and the Middle East. This diversification cannot fully prevent
the Group from being affected by economic factors in each of the sectors or geographic regions.

During 2020 consuitants worked remotely across all of the regions during the Covid-19 outbreak and recovery.
There has been little to no complications to our business as a result and, as of the report date, most consultants
continue to work remotely. Based on the effectiveness of this change over the past year, the Directors do not
consider there to be any related business continuity risk.

Financial risk management

The Group uses various financial instruments. These include loans, cash, overdraft facilities and various items
such as accounts receivable and accounts payable that arise directly from its operations. The purpose of these
financial instruments is to facilitate the Group’s operations.

The existence of these financial instruments exposes the Group to a number of financial risks, which are
described in more detail below.

Capital Resources

Our primary sources of liquidity consist of cash generated from operating activities and available drawings
under the Revolving Credit Facility of $20.0m (2019:520.0m), of which $6.0m {2019: $13.7m} was drawn down
and remained in place as at the year end. The cash balance at the end of the year was $16.9m (2019: $7.9m),

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are market risk, currency risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk and credit risk. The Group’s policies for managing each of these risks are summarised below.

Loan Notes

Cn 30 July 2020, Quantum Holding Finco Ltd listed USD 95,257,652 of Unsecured redeemable loan notes 2029,
and an unlimited amount of payment in kind notes in respect of the Loan notes on The International Stock
Exchange (“TISE”). The maturity of the loan notes is 31 December 2029, Interest is fixed at 10%.

Moarket risk

Market risk encompasses two types of risk: being fair value interest rate risk and currency risk. The Group’s
policies for managing fair value interest rate risk are considered along with those for managing cash flow
interest rate risk and are set out in the subsection entitled ‘interest rate risk’ below.

Currency risk

The Group trades mainly in United States Dellars, British Pounds Sterling and Israeli New Shekels. The Group’s
operations have natural hedges due to revenues and costs generally being in the same currency. The Group
has taken out cross currency swaps to better align the cash interest servicing requirement by currency with
the forecasted cash generation by currency.
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Financial risk management (continted)

Liguidity risk

The Group seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring sufficient liquidity is available in each region to meet the
specific needs in each region as they fall due and to invest cash assets safely, It aiso utilises facilities available
to the Group.

Interest rate risk

The Group finances its operations through a mixture of parent and third-party borrowings. The group manages
interest rate risk by taking out derivative financial instruments, denominated in the currency related to the
underlying facilities.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and accounts receivable, The credit risk associated with cash is
limited as the counterparties have high credit ratings assigned by the international credit rating agencies. The
principal credit risk arises therefore from its accounts receivable, However, credit risk is minimal due to the
nature of the clients and sectors in which the group companies operate and the services provided. Each trading
entity is responsible for managing and analysing the credit risk of new clients before standard payment terms
and conditions are offered.

Section 172(1) statement

During the year, and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 the Directors have acted in a way which they
consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its
members as a whaole, and in doing so have had regard to:

a. the likely consequences of any decision in the long term,

b. the interests of the company's employees,

c. the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others,

d. the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment,

e. the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and
f. the need to act fairly as between members of the company.

In particular, with reference to approval of our 5-year business plan in September 2019, we considered the
long-term impact of investment and other spending decisions on the company's future results, the interests
of employees and other stakeholders, as well as maintaining our reputation for quality provision of software
testing services. Similarly, when evaluating potential acquisitions, the Directors considered the long-term
impact and strategic fit of the acquisitions with our existing business and stakeholders.

Included in the Directors’ Report are further details about the Group’s engagement with employees and
stakeholders, environmental and social matters.

Approval
Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by Chris Wilmot, Director on 16 July 2021,

kl Y Lv’ H’d Chris Wilmot

Director



Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 Decerber 2020

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Group, together with the audited consolidated
financial statements and parent company financial statements, for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Directors of the Company

The direclurs who served throughout the year and to the date of this report, except as noted were as follows:

N Merritt

CJ Wilmot

K Johnston

X Robert

R Mehta (resigned 3 March 2020}

C Welham {resigned 20 February 2020)

Results and Dividends

The loss after tax for the year amounted to $63.2m (period ended 31 December 2019: ioss after tax $35.2m).
The directors declared and paid dividends of $Nit (pericd ended 31 December 2019: $Nil),

Financial instruments

The Group finances its activities with a combination of bank loans, cash and short-term deposits, as disclosed
in note 26, Facilities are used to satisfy short term cash flow requirements. Other financial assets and liabilities,
such as accounts receivable and accounts payable, arise directly from the Group’s operating actlvities.
Financial instruments give rise to foreign currency, interest rate, credit and liquidity risk, information on how
these risks arise is set out above, as are the objectives, policies and processes for their management and the
methods used to measure each risk.

Research and development

The research and development of the group concentrates on developing testing tools and suitable quality
assurance methods. During the period the group has capitalised $2,014k (period ended 31 December 2019:
$463k) of research and development expenditure,

Future developments
The Group’s future developments have been reviewed in the Strategic Report on page 1.
Disabled employees

The Group gives full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the
candidate’s particular aptitudes and abilities are consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the
job. Opportunities are available to disabled employees for training, career development and promotion.
Where existing employees become disabled, it is the Group’s policy to provide continuing employment
wherever practicable in the same or an alternative position and to provide appropriate training to achieve this
aim.

Employee consultation and engagement

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued to keep them
informed on matters affecting them as employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the
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Group. This is achieved through formal and informal meetings and local newsletters. Employee
representatives are consulted regularly on a wide range of matters affecting their current and future interests.
Certain employees are incentivised through participation in an employee share scheme.

Statement of engagement with suppliers, customers and others in a business relationship with the company

The company's stakeholders include its suppliers, customers, and lenders. The company is committed to being
a responsible employer and our employees are at the heart of what we do in developing and delivering
software testing services. We actively manage our peoples' performance and provide training and coaching to
ensure their continued development. The company values all of its suppliers and has long-term relationships
with many of these, Our company strategy aims to achieve organic growth as well as growth-by-acquisition.
In order to achieve this we need to develop and maintain strong customer relationships. We strive to achieve
excellent customer satisfaction and seek and act on customer feedback.

Streamlined energy and carbon reporting

As the principal activity of the company’s subsidiaries is that of software quality assurance consultancy there
are very few activities engaged In by the company that result in direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions
(GHG). In the UK the three notable sources of the companies greenhouse gas emissions are (1) electricity and
natural gas utilities used in the operation of our three UK office locations, {2) energy usage of laptops, and (3)
emissions associated with automobile mileage used for business purposes. Due to COVID social distancing and
travel restrictions in 2020 there was a significant reduction in office space usage and company travel. As a
result, the GHG emissions during the year were artificially reduced to levels below what we would expect for
normal operations. The energy usage and associated greenhouse gas emissions for the fiscal year ended are
as follows:

Year 2020
UK energy use (kWhj 125,364
Associated greenhouse gas emissions (kg) 215,637
Intensity ratio (kg GHG/FTE) 744

Associated greenhouse gases have been calcutated using the following methodology:

kwh energy usage of office space was taken directly from utility bills received throughout the year;
kWh energy used for laptop power was based on an average laptop’s power consumption during a
work year multiplied by the average number of UK based FTE's during the year;

o kWh energy used for office space utilities and laptops was converted to GHG emissions vsing 2020
published conversion tables;

e automobile milage was taken from the total milage reimbursed to UK employees during the year and
converted to kg GHG using 2020 published conversion tables;

Directors’ Indemnities

The Group has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were
made during the year and remain in force at the date of this report.
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Going concern

Details regarding the adoption of the going concern hasis can be found in the significant accounting policies in
the financial statements (note 3.3).

Post balance sheat events

Subsequent to the year end, the Group made three acquisitions as it looks to expand its global quality
assurance capabilities.

¢ On 18 February 2021, the Group acquired QA Infotech through the purchase of the entire share
capital of QA Infotech Software Services Private Limited {India) and QA Infotech, Inc (US).

& On 25 March 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Comply Limited (Israel).

e On 16 April 2021, the Group acquired the trade and assets of Olenick & Associates, Inc (US) as weli
as 100% of the share capital of Olenick Global Limited {Northern Ireland)} and Olenick Global S.A
{Argentina).

In additien, on 15 March 2021, the Group also successfully refinanced its principal bank facilities through the
full repayment of Facility B1 (GBP), Facility B1 (ILS), Facility B2, Acquisition / Capex facility 1, Acquisition /
Capex facility 2 and the Revolving facility (see note 18 for details of the Group’s debt facilities as at 31
December 2020).

The new arrangements comprise a $211 million (USD) B1 term loan facility, a £19 million (GBP) B2 term loan
facility, @ $34.6 million (USD) B3 Euro redenomination term loan facility, a $129 million multicurrency
acquisition / capex facility and a $40 million multicurrency revolving credit facility. The new facilities mature
in March 2028 and will help support the Group’s future organic growth and allow the Group to pursue further
acquisition opportunities.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation,

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law
the directors have prepared the group financial statements in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law).

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the group
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

o state whether applicable international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 have been followed for the group financial statements and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been followed for the company financial statements,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

o make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; an
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¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the group and company will continue in business.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the group’s and company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the group and company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006,

Directors’ confirmations
In the case of each directorin office at the date the directors’ reportis approved:

¢ so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the group’s and
company’s auditors are unaware; and

¢ they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the group’s and company’s auditors are
aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicated their willingness to be reappointed for another term and a
resolution concerning their re-appointment will be proposed at the next Board Meeting.

Approved by the board and signed on its behalf by:

OL ¢ KJ %/)L-“

Chris Wilmot
Director

16 July 2021



Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion:

*  Quantum Holding Tepco Limited's group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements")
give a trug and fair view of the slate of the group’s and of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the group’s
lose and the group's cash flows for the year then ended;

» the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international actounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

« the company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework®, and
applicable law); and

s the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual report and Consolidated financial statements (the “Annual
Report"), which comprise: the Consclidated and Parert Company Balance Sheets as at 31 December 2020; the Consolidated
Income Statement and Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated and Parent Compary Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial
stataments, which incfude a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable iaw. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We believe that the audit avidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethjcal Standard, and we have fuffiled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements.

Our audit approach

Overview
Audit scope

s The focus of our work was over the main trading entities Ibase Operations Corp and Ibase of Fairfield LLC both based in the
US, Qualitest Limitad based in Israel and Qualitest Group UK Limited based in the UK. We also performed desktop review
procedures on all immaterial trading and holding entities based in the UK, Israel, India, Romania, Mexico and Portugal.

Key audit matters

« impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets (group)
e [mpaiment of Investment in Subsidiary (company)
*  Management's consideration of the potential impact of the Covid-19 pandemic (group and parent)

Materlality

o Overall group materiality; US$4,850,000 (2019: US§1,485,000) based on approximately 1% of Total Revenues {2018: 5% of
Adjusted Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation).

¢ Overall company materiality: US$1,443,000 (2018: US$1,485,000) based on approximately 1% of Total Assets (2018: 5% of
Adjusted Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreclation and Amorisation).

+  Parformance materiality: U5%1,387 600 (group) and US$1,082,000 {(company),
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The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial

statements.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement. were of most significance in the audit of the
financial staternents of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not
due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the altocation
of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the
results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by cur audit.

tmpairment of Goodwill and intangible Assets (group), Impairment of investment in Subsidiary {company) and Management's
consideration of the potential impact of the Covid-19 pandemic (group and parent) are new key audit matters this year. On
account of the listing of the Group’s unsecured redeemable loan notes on the The International Stock Exchange, this is the first
year, the requirements of ISA 701 {auditor's responsibility to communicate key audit matters (KAMs) in the auditor's repodt)
applies and accordingly KAMs are included in our opinien for the first time.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets (group)

Refer to note 4 to the financial statements for the directors'
disclosures of the critical accounting estimates and judgements
and notes 12 and 13 to the group financial statements in respect
of goodwill ($142m) and intangible assets ($243m).

During the current year, Covid-19 was deemed to be a trigger
event. Under IAS 36, an impairment assessment was therefore
completed by management as at 31 Decernber 2020,

Goodwill requires an annual impairment assessment.

The impairment assessment for these assets involves subjective
judgements about future business performance, with key
assumptions including cash flows, the long-term growth rate,
terminal growth rate and discount rate. In addition, the current
economic environment due to Cavid-19 has also heightened the
risk of impairment. Accordingly, this was an area of focus for our
audit as there is a significant risk that the camrying value of these
assels could be materially misstated.

In evaluating management's impairment assessment of
goodwill and Intangible assets, our audit procedures
included:

+ We assessed managament's impairment methodology,
as requirad under |1AS 36 'Impairment of assets'.

+ We evaluated the cash flow forecasts, and the process
by which they were compiled, comparing them {o the
latest board approved budget and forecasts. This included
challenging management on key assumptions and
considering the historical accuracy of management's
forecasting. We corroborated the growth rates and
anterprise value multiples to independent sources.

« We evaluated the sensitivities performed by
management and performed our own sensitivity analysis
of the key drivers of the cash flow forecasts.

* We involved our internal valuation experts to assess the
reasonablenass of the discount rate, the terminal growth
rate and the long-term growth rate used.

« We tested the mathematical accuracy and integrity of
the underlying spreadsheet model.

« We then compared the carrying value of the goodwill
and intangible assets to the enterprise value to assess the
level of headroom.

+ We considered the adequacy of the disclosures made.

Based on the results of the procedures performed, we
concluded that no impalrment was required and that the
disclosures were appropriate.
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Impairment of Investment in Subsichary {company)

Refer to note 4 to the financial stataments for the directors’ disclosures
of the g¢ritical accounting estimates and judgements; and note 31 to the
financial statements in respect of investment in subsidiaries.

During the current year, Covid-19 was deemed to be a trigger event.
Under IAS 38, an impairment assessment was therefore completed by
management as at 31 December 2020.

The impairment assessment for these assets involves subjective
judgements about future business performance, with key assumptions
including cash flows, the long-term growth rates, terminal growth rate
and discount rate. In addition, the current economic environment due
to Covid-19 has heightened the associated risk. Accordingly, this was
an ared of focus for our audit as there is a significant risk that the
carrying value of the company's invastment in subsidiaries could be
materially misstateq.

In evaluating management's impainment
assessment of the company’s investment in
subsidiaries, our audit procedures included:

* We assessed management's impairment
methodology, as required under |AS 36 'Impairment
of assets.

+ We verified that the cash flows used in these
assessments were based on the estimated cash
flows of the company's subsidiaries and consistent
with the impaimment review of goodwill and
intangible assets.

*+ We considered the adequacy of the disclosures
made.

Based on the results of the procedures performed,
we concluded that no impairment was required and
that the disclosures were appropriate.

Management's consideration of the potential impact of the Covid-19
panderric (group and parent)

Refer to the Director's report on page 7, note 4 to the financial
statements for the directors' disclosures of the critical accounting
estimates and judgemants and going concemn, notes 12 and 13 to the
group financial statements in respect of goodwill and intangible assets
and note 31 to the financial statements in respect of the company's
investment in subsidiaries.

Since early 2020, the Covid-19 pandemic has impacted the globe,
creating considerable uncertainty for economies and markets.
Management has considered the potential impact of the Covid-19
pandemic on the current and future operations of the group and the
company.

In doing so. they have made estimates and judgements about the
future with a particular focus on forecast cash flows which impact the
carrying values of goodwill and other intangibie assets (group) and the
carrying value of the company’s investment in subsidiaries (company)
as discussed above, and also the going concern assessment for the
group and the company.

As a result of the impact of Covid-19 on the wider financial markets, as
well as the significance of the current and potential impact of Covid-19
on the operations and trading performance of the group and the
company, we determined tha directors' consideration of the potential
impact of Covid-19 to be a key audit matter.

This included thair assoclated estimates and judgements in the
assesgment of the carrying value of goodwill and Intanglble assets
(group), the carrying value of the company’s investment in subsidiaries
{company), the going concern assessmant for tha group and the
company and assessing the recoverability of both the group and
parent company's trade and intercompany receivables.

Qur procedures in respect of the carrying value of
goodwill and intangible assets (group) and the
camrying value of the company's investment in
subsidiary (company) are set out in the related key
audit matters above.

Qur procedures and conclusions in respect of going
concern are set out separately within the
‘Conclusions relating to going concermn’ section of
this report.

Qur procedures on assessing the recoverability of
the trade and intercompany receivables included
assessing the credit payment terms and the nature
of the contracts, which provided comfort that no
oxpected credit losses were required.

We considered the appropriateness of disclosures in
the financial statements in relation to the impact of
the pandemic on the business and on relevant
accounting estimates such as the recoverability of
the trade and intercompany receivables and
deemed these to be appropriate.

10
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How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we parformed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting processes and ¢ontrels, and the industry
in which they operate.

The focus of our work was over the main trading entities Ibase Operations Corp and Ibase of Fairfield LLC both based in the US,
Qualitest Limlted based in Israel and Qualitest Group UK Limited based in the UK. . We also performed desktop review procedures
on all immaterial trading and holding entities based in the UK, Israel, India, Romania, Mexice and Portugal.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiaiity. These,
together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the financial slatements as & whole,

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Financial statements - group Financial statements - company

Overalt US$1,850,000 (2019: US$1,485,000). US$1,443,000 (2019: US$1,485,000).
matenalfity
How we Based on approximately 1% (2018: 5%) of Total Based on approximately 1% (2018: 5%} of Total

determined it

Revenues (2019: Adjusted Eamings before Intarest,
Tax, Depraciation and Amortisation)

Assets (2019: Adjusted Eamings before Interest,
Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation)

Rationale for
banchmark
appied

Adjusted Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation
and Amortisation was not considered appropriate with
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on trading
activities. Therefore, total Revenues was used as a
benchmark in the current year to accurately reflect
trading in the year. Furthermore, the benchmark
percentage was lower than the prior year, to reflect
the change in status of the Group to a Public Interest

Adjusted Eamnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation
and Amortisation was not censidered appropriate
with the impact of the Covid-18 pandemic on trading
activities. Total assets was used as a benchmark in
the gusrent year as this is a holding company only,
with no trading. Furthermore, the benchmark
percentage was lower than the prior year, to reflect
the change in status of the Group to a Public Interest

Entity. Entity.

For each component in the scope of our group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall group materiality. The
range of materiality allocated across compenents was between $1,602,000 and $833,000. Certain componsgnts were audited to a
local statutory audit materlality that was also less than our overall group materiality.

We use performance materiality to reduce 1o an appropnately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the scope of our
audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for example in
determining sample sizes. Cur performance materiality was 75% of overall materiality, amounting to US$1,387,000 for the group
financial statements and US$1,082,000 for the company financial statements.

In determining the performance materialtty, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk assessment and
aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount at the upper end of our normal range was
appropriate.

We agreed with those charged with governance that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above
$92,000 (group audit) (2019; §74.000) and $72.500 (company audit) (2019: $74,000) as well as misstatemnents below those
amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Concluslons relating to going concern

Our avaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group's and the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting included:

¢  Understanding the current and expected impact of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic on the group and company's operations /
forecast results;

11
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

* Testing the directors’ base case and downside assessment, including auditing the data inputs to the medel and considering
historical forecasting accuracy;

s Performing sensitivity analysis to challenge assumptions made by management and assess the impact on liquidity and forecast
covenant compliance; and

*  Raviewing the directors' disclosure within the financial statements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, baecause not alt future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's and the
company's ability to continue as a geing concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this repot.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' Report, we alsc considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2008 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certaln opinions and
matters as described below.

Strategic report and Directors’ Report

In our oplnicn, based on the work undertaken In the course of the audit, the information given In the Strategic report and Directors’
Report for the year ended 31 December 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements,

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and thelr environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we did not Identify any materlal misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors' Report.

Responsibllities for the financlal statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibliities in respect of the financial statamants, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view. The directors are also respensible for such internal control as they determine is nacessary {0 enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

12



Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Quantum Holding Topco Limited

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the company’s ability to contique
as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going soncern basis of accquntmg
unless the directors eithar intend to iiquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
10 do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our ubjectives are 1o obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggrepate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econemic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are Instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent t¢ which
our procedures are capable of detecting irregutarities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and Industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulations related to data protection, employment and tax legislation, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might
have a material effect on the financlal statements. We also considered those laws and reguiations that have a direct impact on the
financial statements such as the Companies Act 2008. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for frauduient
manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), end determined that the principal risks were
refated to posting inappropriate journal entries to manipulate reported resuits and management blas in accounting estimates. The
group engagement team shared this risk assessment with the component auditors so that they could include appropriate audit
procadures in response o such risks in their work. Audit procedures performed by the group engagement team and/or component
auditors included:

&  Discussions with the Group management team and those charged with governance, including considerations of known or
suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulation (including data protection legislation) and fraud;
Assessment of the Group's whistieblowing facility; -

Evaluating and, where appropriate, challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in determining significant
accounting estimates; and -

*  [dentifying and testing unusual journal entries, in particular journal entries posted with an unusual account combination.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that are net closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements.
Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through coflusion.

Qur audit testing might include testing complete populations of cerain transactions and halances, possibly using data auditing
techniques. Howaver, it typlcally involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete populations.
We will often seek to target particutar items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit
sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is selectad,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements js located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsrespensibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Pant 16 of the Companies Act 2008 and for no other purpose. We 40 not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
rasponsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or Into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of
Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinien;

+ e have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

s certain disciosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
* the company financial statements are nol in agreement with the agcounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

S (e

Brian Henderson (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

16 July 2021
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Year ended 31
December Period ended 31
2020 December 2019

Note $’000 3000
Revenue 5 188,092 52,394
Cost of sales (132,644) (37,425}
55,448 14,969
Gross profit
Administrative expenses {72,569) (40,600)
(17,121) (25,631}
Operating loss 6
Finance costs 9 {41,266) (11,491)
Finance income 9 760 -
{57,627} (37,122)
Loss before tax
(5,567) 1,895
Tax (expense) / credit 10
{63,194) (35,227)

Loss for the flnancial year/period

The notes on pages 23 to 76 farm an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
As at 31 December 2020

Year ended 31

December Period ended 31

2020 December 2019

$'000 $’000

Loss for the financial year/period (63,194) (35,227}
Items that will not be reclassified to income statement:

Exchange differences an translation of foreign operations (1,570} (83}

Other comprehensive expense for the year/period net of tax {1,570} (83)

(64,764) {35,310)

Total comprehensive expense for the year/period

The notes on pages 23 to 76 form an integral part of these Financial Statements
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Company number: 12077424

Non-current assets

Googwill

Other intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

Trade and other receivables

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Provisions

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Ceferred tax lizbilities
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Provisions

Total liabilities

Net liabilities

Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Note

12
13
14
15
17

17
11

18
20
25
21

18
19
20
25
21

Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
$'000 $°000
141,689 141,689
242,623 277,764
3,041 2,781
7,181 10,242
680 732
395,214 433,208
40,614 42,780
16,945 7,922
57,559 50,702
452,773 483,910
18,284 22,871
26,169 31,671
3,308 2,780
2,154 1,852
49,915 59,174
408,995 392,193
53,656 51,619
30,350 5,743
4,242 7,595
1,170 1,159
498,413 458,309
548,328 517,483
{95,555) (33,573)
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Consolidated balance sheet {continued}
As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Note $'000 $'000
Equity
Share capital 22 1,124 1,110
Other reserves 3,395 627
Accumulated losses:
At start of year/period (35,310) -
Total comprehensive expense attributable to owners (64,764) {35,310}
Total equity (95,555) {33,573)

The financial statements of Quantum Holding Topco Limited {company number: 12077424) on pages 15
to 76 were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 16 July 2021. They were signed on

its behalf by:

Lol

Chris Wilmot

Director
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Parent company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Note $'000 $000
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 31 139,541 139,541
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 17 5,575 2,731
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 (15} -
Borrowings 18 (158,901) (144,426)
Net liabilities {13,800) (2,154)
Equity
Share capital 22 1,124 1,110
Other reserves 3,395 627
Accumulated losses:
At start of year/period {3,891} -
Total comprehensive expense attributable to owners (14,428) (3,891)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company {13,800} {2,154)

The Company has taken advantage of the legal dispensation contained in Section 408 of the Companies Act
2006 allowing it not to publish a separate income statement and related notes and not to publish a separate
statement of comprehensive income.

The Company has no bank accounts and consequently no cash flow items to present in the period.
The financial statements of Quantum Holding Topco Limited (registered number 12077424) on pages 15to 76

were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on 16 July 2021. They were signed on its
behalf by:

At

Chris Wilmot

Director
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Balance as at 1 July 2019

Loss for the financial period

Other comprehensive expense for the
financial period

Total comprehensive expense for the
period

Transactions with cwners:

Share issue

Credit relating to share scheme

Balance as at 31 December 2019

Balance as at 1 January 2020

Loss for the financial year

Other comprehensive expense for the
financial year

Total comprehensive expense for the
year

Transactions with owners:

Share issue

Credit relating to share scheme

Balance as at 31 December 2020

The notes on pages 23 to 76 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Share Other Accumulated Total
Capital Reserves losses Equity
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

- - (35,227} (35,227)
- - (83) {83)
- - {35,310) (35,310}
1,110 - - 1,110
- 627 - 627
1,110 627 (35,310) (33,573)
Share Other Accumulated Total
Capltal Reserves losses Equity
$'000 $’000 $'000 $'000
1,110 627 {35,310} (33,573)
- - (63,194) {63,154)

- - (1,570) {1,570)

- (64,764) (64,764)

14 - - 14

- 2,768 - 2,768
1,124 3,395 {100,074) {95,555)
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Parent company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Share Other Accumulated Total
Capital Reserves losses Equity
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance as at 1 July 2019 - - - -
Loss for the financial period - - {3,891) {3,891)
Total comprehensive expense for the - - {3,891) {3,891)
period
Transactions with owners:
Share issue 1,110 - - 1,110
Credit relating to share scheme - ’ 627 - 627
Balance as at 31 December 2019 1,110 627 {3,891} (2,154)
Share Other Accumulated Total
Capital Reserves losses Equlity
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance as at 1 January 2020 1,110 627 (3,891) {2,154)
Loss for the financial year - - (14,428) (14,428)
Total comprehensive expense for the . - (14,428} (14,428)
year
Transactions with owners:
Share issue 14 - - 14
Credit relating to share scheme - 2,768 - 2,768
Balance as at 31 December 2020 1,124 3,395 (18,319) (13,800)

The notes on pages 23 to 76 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Year ended Period ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
Note 5000 $'000
Cash generated from/(used in} operations 24 28,146 (25,680}
Income taxes paid {5,712) (1,633)
Interest paid (12,276} (2,866)
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities 10,158 (30,179}
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,032) (347)
Purchase of other intangibles (4,010) {1,012)
Acquisition of subsidiary (net of cash acquired) - (352,876)
Payment of deferred consideration (1,729} (1,825)
Net cash used in investing activities (6,771) (356,060)
Financing activities
Proceeds on issue of shares 14 583
Proceeds on issue of priority shares - 127,119
Proceeds on issue of loan notes - 101,807
New hank loans raised net of loan fees 28,073 169,099
Repayment of borrowings and loan notes (17,002) {3,759}
Lease payments (3,879) {872)
Net cash generated from financing actlvities 7,206 393,977
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 10,593 7,738
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year/period 7,922 -
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (1,570) 184
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year/period 16,945 7,922

The notes on pages 23 to 76 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1. General information

Quantum Holding Topco Limited (the Company) is a private company limited by shares which is incorporated
and domiciled in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act. The address of the registered office is given on
the Company information page. The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the Group) and the
nature of the Group's operations are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 1 to 3.

These financial statements are presented in US Dollars because that is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the group operates.

2. Adoption of new and revised Standards

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no new accounting standards, amendments or revisions to existing
accounting standards were adopted.

New accounting standards not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the
reporting year ended 31 December 2020 and have not been early adopted by the Group. These include the
new insurance standard IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts which was issued in 2017 with the effective date of 1
January 2021. These new or amended standards or interpretations are not expected to have a significantimpact
on the Group’s financial statements,

3. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below.

3.1 Basis of accounting

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards
and conformity with the requirements of Companies Act 2006 (“IFRS”), and the Company financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 Disclosure Framework and the applicable legal requirement of
the Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair
value through income statement. Accounting policies have been applied consistently for both periods
presented.

The Company has taken advantage of the legal dispensation contained in Section 408 of the Companies Act
2006 allowing it not to publish a separate income statement and related notes and not to publish a separate
statement of comprehensive income. The company has also taken advantage of related party exemptions and
has not disclosed transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the group’s accounts policies. The area
involving higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financlial statements, are disclosed in note 4,

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies {continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company {its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. Control is achieved when the
Company:

#has the power over the investee;
e s exposed, or has rights, to variable return from its involvement with the investee; and
e has the ability to use its power to affect  its returns,

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of contral listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investes, it considers that it has power
over the investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers alt relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Company's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

s the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

s potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

erights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability
to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders' meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Company losses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the date the Company gains control
until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

The income statement and each component of other comprehensive income for the year are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests, Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting
policies used into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

Allintra-group assets and labilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
the members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policles (continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. Those
interests of non-centrolling sharehoiders {that are present ownership interests) that entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets upon liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Subsequent to acquisition, the
carrying amount of non-controlling interest’s is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-
controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes In equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance,

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company,

When the Group loses contrel of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in income statement is
calculated as the difference between (i} the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), less
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to income statement or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under I1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, when applicable,
the costs on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture,

3.3 Going concern

The Directors confirm that having reviewed the group’s and parent company’s cash requirements for a period
of at least 12 months from the date of signing these financial statements, they have a reasonable expectation
that the group and parent company have adequate resources to continue in operational existence and to meet
their liabilities as and when they fall due. The Directors have accordingly adopted the going concern basis in
preparing these financial statements.

The uncertainty as to the future impact on the group and parent company of the COVID-19 pandemlc, and
resulting uncertainty in the global economy, has been considered as part of the group’s and parent company’s
adoption of the going concern basis. It should be noted that the Director’s consider that the business traded
well during 2020 despite COVID, and in line with management’'s most optimistic scenario of the scenario
planning undertaken in March 2020,

Management has performed a further thorough scenario planning exercise and have reviewed the consolidated

income statement, net current liabilities and cash flow forecasts in conjunction with current and future
financing avallability.
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Going concern {continued}

The exercise included two scenarios. The first scenario was based on base case projections created from the
Group’s 2020 budget which assumes 18% revenue growth in 2021 plus 10% annual growth thereafter. Scenario
2 is a downside scenario which assumes 11% revenue growth in 2021 plus 6% annual growth thereafter along
with an overall decrease in gross margin performance of 1% when compared to the base case scenario. Variants
of both scenarios were constructed to consider the impact of acquisition activity that has subsequently been
completed through the date of these financial statements (see note 32). For each scenario, management also
considered the impact on profitability and cash flows, along with remedial actions. To date the group has
performed in line with the base case scenario. Management's latest forecast indicates the group and parent
company will continue to perform broadly in line with the base case scenario projection.

The scenario planning exercise shows that under both scenarios the group and parent company are able to
operate within their existing banking facilities for the foreseeabie future, and would retain adequate liquidity
and covenant headroom throughout the going concern period.

3.4 Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and operations which constitute a business are measured using the acquisition
method. The cost of business combination is measured at the aggregate fair value (upon the exchange date) of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity instruments issued by the Group in consideration of attaining
control of the acquired entity. Transaction costs directly related to the business combination shall be
recognised on the income statement when incurred.

Identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquired entity, which meet the conditions for recognition pursuant to
IFRS 3 {Revised) "Business combinations", are recognised at fair value thereof upon the acquisition date.

Non-controlling interests in the acquired entity are initially measured, upon the business combination date, at
their share of fair value of assets, liabilities and contingent labilities of the acquired entity, excluding their share
of goodwill.

Non-cantrolling interests which do not confer current equity interest, such as option warrants and the equity
component of debentures convertible into shares of the acquired entity, are presented at fair value, except for
share-based payments of the acquired entity measured upon the business combination date.

Contingent consideration with respect to business combinations, which is not classified as an equity instrument
pursuant to provisions of IAS 32 "Financial instruments: Presentation” is measured at fair value in subseguent
periods as well, with changes to fair value charged to the income statement. If the contingent consideration is
classified as an equity instrument, it is not re-measured in subsequent reported periods.

3.5 Intangible assets: Goodwill

Goodwill arising from business combinations is measured at the excess acquisition cost over Company share of
net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and tontingent liabilities of the consolidated company recognised
upon the acquisition date. How goodwill is measured, in conformity with the aforementicned alternatives, is
individually determined upon each business combination.
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.5 Intangible assets: Goodwill

if, upon reassessment, total Group rights in net fair value of identified assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised excecds the cost of business combination — the excess is immediately recognised in the income
statement. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost net of
accumulated impairment loss. For the purpose of impairment review, goodwill is assigned to each of the
Group's cash-generating units for which a benefit is expected from the business combination synergy. Cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been assigned are reviewed for impairment annually or more often if
signs indicate potential impairment of said unit. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is iower
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is first assigned to reducing the carrying amount of any goodwill
assigned to the cash-generating unit. Thereafter, the balance of impairment loss, if any, is assigned to other
assets of the cash-generating unit pro-rata to their carrying amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows from each cash-generating unit are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

3.6 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured as the fair value of consideration received or receivable for satisfying performance
obligations contained in contracts with clients, including expenses and disbursements but excluding discounts
and Value Added Tax. Variable consideration is included in the transaction price only to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal will not be required when the uncertainties determining the level of
variable consideration are subsequently resolved. Revenue is recognised when or as the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring control of services to clients. This occurs as follows for the Group's
various contract types:

* Time-and-materials contracts are recognised over time as services are provided at the fee rate agreed
with the client where there is an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

* Fixed-fee contracts are recognised over time based on the actual service provided to the end of the
reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be provided where there is an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date. This is determined based on the actual inputs of time
and expenses relative to total expected inputs.

¢ Performance-fee contracts are recognised when the right to consideration arises on having met the
relevant performance related elements.

* Contingent-fee contracts, over and above any agreed minimum fee, are recognised at the pointin time
that the contingent event occurs, and the Group has become entitled to the revenue.
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.6 Revenue recognition {continued)

* Licence-fee contracts that provide a right to use the Group’s intellectual property {‘IP’}, as it exists at
the date the licence is granted, are recognised at the point in time that the licence agreement is
entered into and the licensee is able to use and benefit from the licence. Licence-fee contracts that
provide a right of access to the Group’s IP, as it exists throughout the licence period, are recognised
over time to reflect the pattern in which the benefits of access transfer to the client over the licence
period,

Where contracts include multiple performance obligations, the transaction price is allocated to each
performance obligation based on its stand-alone selling price. Where these are not directly observable, they
are estimated based on expected cost-plus margin. Adjustments are made to allocate discounts proportionately
relative to the stand-alone selling price of each performance obligation, Estimates of revenues, costs or extent
of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs are reflected in the income statement in the period in which the circumstances
that give rise to the revision become known.

For time-and-materials, fixed-fee and licence-fee contracts, fees are usually billed on account based on a
payment schedule.

For performance-fee and contingent-fee contracts, fees are usually billed and paid when entitlement to the
revenue has been established. If the revenue recognised by the Group exceeds the amounts billed, a contract
asset is recognised. If the amounts billed exceed the revenue recognised, a contract liability is recognised.
Contract assets are reclassified as receivables when billed and the consideration has become unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before payment is due.

The Group's standard payment terms require settlement of invoices within 30 days of receipt. The Group does
not adjust the transaction prices for the time value of money as it does not expect to have any contracts where
the period between the transfer of the promised services to the client and the payment by the client exceeds
one year.

In recognising revenue under IFRS 15, Management have followed the five step model and considered
identification of the contract with a customer; identification of performance obligations of each contract;
transaction price; allocation of transaction price to performance obligation and recognition of revenue at the
point the performance obligation has been satisfied.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value in profit or loss where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received, and the group has complied with all attached conditions. Grants
received where the group has yet to comply with all attached conditions are recognised as a liability (and
included in deferred income within trade and other payables) and released to income when all attached
conditions have been complied with.
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3.7 Finance income

Finance income is accumulated periodically, accounting for the principal to be repaid and using the effective
interest method,

3.8 Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the
lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low
value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the asset are consumed.

The liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at commencement
date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease ligbility
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
- fixed lease payments, less any lease incentives;

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease If the lease term reflects exercise of an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the balance sheet.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount toreflect the lease payments
made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability {and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
asset) whenever

- the lease term has changed or there Is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

- the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value in which case the lease liability is measured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate {unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating
interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used)
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3.8 Leases (continued}

- a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate,

Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets comprise the initlal measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is located or restore the underiying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, a provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. The costs are included in the related right-of-use
asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and the useful life of the underlying
asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that
the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the usefu!
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the consolidated balance sheet,

The Group applies IAS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and
accounts for any identified impairment loss (note 3.12).

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability
and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line “other expenses” in the income
statement.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components and instead account
for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement, the Group has not applied this
practical expedient.

3.9 Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements, the results and financial position of each group company are expressed in US dollars,
which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements,

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies} are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
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3.9 Foreign currencies {(continued)

determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in the income statement in the financial period in which they arise except
for:

» exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs on those fereign currency borrowings;

® exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see below
under financial instruments / hedge accounting); and exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement Is neither planned nor likely to
occur in the foreseeable future (therefore forming part of the netinvestment in the foreign
operation}, which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to income statement on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the group’s foreign
operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date, Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used, Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accurmnulated in equity (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate}.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate, Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income,

3.10 Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax,

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the income statement, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in eguity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
alsc recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for
the business combination.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date, in the countries where the company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
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3.10 Taxation {continued}

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions, where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised,
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and itis probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probahle that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited in other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
other comprehensive income.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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3.11 Property, plant and eguipment

Property, plant and equipment items are recognised at cost, net of accumulated amortisation and net of
accumulated impairment loss. Cost includes the acquisition cost of the asset, as well as cost which is directly
attributable to getting the asset to the location and state required for its operation in the manner intended by
management,

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated systematically, using the straight-line method over the expected useful life of the
asset, starting on the date on which the asset is ready for its intended use, accounting for the expected residual
vajue at the end of its useful life.

The useful life and depreciation rates are as follows:

Depreciation

Useful life rates
Leasehcld Improvements 6-7 years 15%
Computer Equipment 3 years 33%
Office furniture and equipment 14-15 years 7%

The residual value, depreciation method and useful life of the asset are reviewed by Company management on
aregular basis.

Gain or loss generated from sale or obsolescence of a fixed asset item is determined by the difference between
proceeds from Its sale and its carrying amount upon the date of sale or obsolescence and is recognised in the
income statement.

Subsequent expenditure

The replacement cost of part of a fixed asset item, which may be reliably estimated, is recognised as an increase
to the carrying amount when incurred, if the future economic benefits attributed to this item are expected to
accrue to the entity. The costs of the day-to-day maintenance are recognised on the income statement as
incurred.
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3.12 Other intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date {which is regarded as their cost),

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Derecognition of intanglble assets

Anintangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the income statement when
the asset is derecognised.

Trademarks

Patents and trademarks are measured initially at purchase cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives.

Client Relationships

Following a business combination, the Group identifies any significant customer relationships or partnerships
which will drive future revenues. The initial value of these assets is determined using an income valuation
approach and subsequently amortised over their estimated useful economic life,

Software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Directly attributable costs in the creation of software products are capitalised. These costs will include software
development employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
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3.12 Other Intangible assets (continued)
Developed technology

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design, creation and testing of identifiable and unigue
assets controlled by the group are recognised as intangible assets where the following criteria are met:
® [tis technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use;
management intends to complete the asset and use or sell it;
there is an ability to use or sell the asset;
it can be demonstrated how the asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
asset are available; and
® the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Development costs recognised as assets are amortised, starting once the assetis complete, over their estimated
useful lives.

Impairment of intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the assetis estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any), Where
the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Anintangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment at least annually and whenever there
is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Other intangible amortisation policy

Other intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives:

Useful life
Client relationships 10 years
Trademarks 10 years
Developed technology 2 years
Software 3 years

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced toits recoverable amount. Animpairment
loss is recognised immediately in the income statement, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset {or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in income statement, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase,

3.13 Financilal instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through income statement) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through income statement
are recognised immediately in income statement.
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Finrancial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through
income statement’ {(FVPL) and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired and is determined at the time of initial recognition,

a) Financial assets at fair value through income statement or at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVYOCI) comprise:
® Equity securities which are not held for trading, and which the group has irrevocably elected at initial

recognition to recognise in this category. These are strategic investments and the group considers this
classification to be more relevant.

e Debt securities where the contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest and the objective of
the group’s business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets.

b) Financial assets at amortised cost
The following classifies its financial assets as at amortised cost only if both the following criteria are met:

& The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows;
& The contractual! terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest.

¢) Financial assets at falr value through income statement
The following financial assets are classified at fair value through income statement (FVPL):

Debt investments that do not qualify for measurement at either amortised cost;

Equity investments that are held for trading; and

Equity investments for which the entity has not elected to recognise fair value gains and losses
through OCI.
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Effective Interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount en initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest hasis for debt instruments,
Loans and recelvables

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial,

The company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets, To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The group has therefore concluded that
the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets,

Derecognition of financlal assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in income statement,

38



Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies {continued)

3.13 Financial instruments {continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety {e.g. when the Group retains an option to
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financlal asset
between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises
on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference hetween the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received
for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in the income statement. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and
the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in the income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own
equity instruments,

Financial llabilities
Other financial llabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the income statement,
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When the Group exchanges with the existing lender one debtinstrumentinto another one with  substantially
different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Groups accounts for substantial modification of terms of
an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a
new liability. It is assumed that the terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash
flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the original
effective rate is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability.

Derivative financiel instruments

The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and
foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross currency
swaps. Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note 26.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in the income statement immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument,
in which event the timing of the recognition in the income statement depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship. The Group designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or firm commitments {fair value hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transactions or hedges
of foreign currency risk of firm commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in foreign
operations.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair
value is recognised as a financial liability. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current
liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised
or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

3.14 Provislons

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

3.15 Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination

Contingent liabilities acquired in a business combination are initially measured at fair value at the acquisition
date. At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are measured at the higher of the
amount that would be recognised in accardance with LAS 37 and the amountinitially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with IFRS 3. The Group has no contingent liabilities and has issued no
guarantees under section 394CA or 479C of the Companies Act 2006 as at 31 December 2020.

3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

3.17 Retirement benefit schemes

Defined contribution schemes

The group operates defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for all qualifying employees as required
by local legislation. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the group in funds under the
control of trustees. Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributicns.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemas are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions,

Israel severance scheme

Labour laws in Israel and the Severance Pay Act, 1963 require the Company to pay severance to employees
upon termination or retirement (see note 21).

3.18 Share Caplital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

41



Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes ta the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. Significant accounting policies (continued)
3.19 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less {or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities. Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

3.20 Trade receivables

Trade recetvables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection is expected in one year or less (orin the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

3.21. IFRS 9 Expected credit loss

The Group has applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets. The expected 10ss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced. The current and forward
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of customers to settle the receivables are
also considered. The Group has  assessed that no material adjustment to provisions is required to reflect the
lifetime expected loss.

3.22 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amottised cost; any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs} and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probabie that some or alil of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent that there is no evidence that it is probabie that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amartised over the period of
the facility to which it relates,

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemahle on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The
dividends on these preference shares are recognised in the Income statement as interest expense.

3.23 Share based payments

During the year, the group gave senior management the opportunity to acquire shares in Quantum Holding
Topco Limited. These shares cannot be traded and must be sold back to the Group when employment ceases.
The shares are only redeemed on sale of the Group. The fair value of the shares is measured at the issue date
and spread as a cost over the expected period before sale of the Group. See note 27 for further details of the
share scheme.
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4, Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the group’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

Revenue recognition

A material amount of the group revenue is generated from performance-fee based contracts. The progress of
these contracts is discussed on a monthly basis with clients. The group relies on operational managers to discuss
progress with both our project managers and client project management and agree when a performance
obligation has been met and when it is appropriate to recognise the revenue for the performance obligation.
The directors are satisfied that control has been transferred and that recognition of the revenue in the current
period is appropriate.

Capitalisation of development expenditure

The Group capitalises internal costs of developed technology where the Directors are satisfied as to the
technical, commercial and financial viability of the individual projects. Judgement is required in determining
whether a project is suitable for capitalisation and in determining useful economic life.

Lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option. Extension aptions are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended.

Critical estimates and assumptions in applying the group’s accounting policies

The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are addressed below.
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q. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Acquisition accounting

Accounting for acquisitions requires a fair value exercise to assess the assets and liabilities acquired, induding
any separately identifiable intangible assets. he process ot determining tair values any require management
to make estimates which are subjective in nature.

Impairment - goodwill and other intangibles

The group determines whether goodwill and otherintangible assts are impaired on an annual basis or otherwise
when changes in events or situations indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. This requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets are allocated. Estimating
the value-in-use requires the Group to make an estimate of the future cash flows from the cash-generating unit
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
Group has performed sensitivity analysis based on the growth assumptions used to support the carrying value
of Goodwill at the balance sheet date. See note 12 for more details.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are stated at cost, net of depreciation and amortisation
and any provision for impairment. Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and the costs
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for intended use. The carrying values of assets are
reviewed for impairment in any period whereby events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value
may not be recoverable,

Share based payments

The Group has estimated the fair value of the shares issued to employees based on a Monte Carlo model, The
inputs into the valuation model are subjective in nature. These are subject to an annual assessment of fair vaiue
with any adjustments te fair value recognised in the income statement. See note 27.

Uncertain tax positions

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual
agreaments, differences arising between the attual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to
such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The
Group establishes provisions of tax liability, based on reasonable estimates and judgements.

Deferred consideration

Any deferred contingent consideration is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration, which is deemed to be an asset or liability, are recognised in
either the profit or loss account or in other comprehensive income, in accardance with IFRS 3.
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5. Revenue

An analysis of the group’s revenue is as follows:

Continuing operations
Software testing services (100% over time)

Geographical analysis of revenue by origin:

Country:
USA

UK

Israel
Other

6. Operating Loss

Operating loss for the year/period has been arrived at after charging

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {note 14)
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 13)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15)

Unrealised foreign exchange  loss

Year ended 31  Period ended 31
December 2020 December 2019
$'000 $'000

188,092 52,394

Year ended 31 Period ended 31
December 2020 December 2019

$’000 $’000
71,780 20,661
36,217 10,283
78,422 20,279
1,673 1,171
188,092 52,394

Year ended 31 Period ended 31
December 2020 December 2019

$'000 $'000
773 199
39,151 9,132
4,115 824
192 561
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7. Auditors' remuneration
The analysis of the auditors’ remuneration is as follows:

Year ended 31

December  Period ended 31
2020 December 2019
$'000 $'000
Fees payable to the company’s auditors for the audit
of all Group companies 375 367
Fees payable to the company’s auditors and their
subsidiaries for other services to the group 70 65
Total audit fees 445 432
Non-audit services
- Taxation compliance services
9 50
- Qther services
Total non-audit fees 9 50

8, Staff costs

The Company does not directly employ any staff. The average monthly number of employees for the group

{including executive directors) was:

Year ended 31

December Period ended 31

2020 December 2019

Senior Management 8 21
Software testers 2,532 2,779
Sales and administration 244 278
2,784 3,078
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8. Staff costs {continued)

Wages and salaries

Sacial security costs
Cther pension costs
Other Benefits

Tetal

g. Finance Income and costs

Finance costs

Accrued interest on priority shares

Bank loan interest

Accrued interest on loan notes

Unrealised foreign exchange loss on bank loans

Amortisation of loan issue costs

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Bank facility fees

Unwinding of discount

Net loss on financial instruments at fair value through the income
statement

Total Finance costs

Flnance Income

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through the income
statement

Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Year ended 31
December Period ended 31
2020 December 2019
$'000 $'000
118,475 32,505
8,969 2,406
7,258 1,862
5,267 897
139,969 37,670
Year ended 31
December Period ended 31
2020 December 2019
$°000 5’000
14,476 3,421
12,303 2,866
10,003 2,323
2,258 1,400
1,189 449
428 147
373 11
236 43
- 831
41,266 11,491
Year ended 31
December  Period ended 31
2020 Pecember 2019
$'000 $'000
760 -
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10. Tax

Year ended 31
December Period ended 31
2020 December 2019

$'000 $'000
Corporation tax:
Current year/period 3,462 228
Deferred tax charge{credit) (see note 19) 2,105 {2,123)
5,567 (1,895)

The tax charge on the group’s loss before tax differs {period ended 31 December 2019: differs) from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to provide of the
consolidated entities as follow:

Year ended 31 Period ended 31
December December 2019

2020 $'000
$'000

Loss before tax 57,627 37,122
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% {period ended 31 December 10,949 7,053
2019: 19%)
Adjustment in respect of prior years (394) -
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable (4,343) (3,677}
profit
Effect of rate changes {5,534) (1809
Losses not recognised {5,802) 11,251}
Utifization of losses previously unrecognized for deferred tax 45 -
Group relief (476) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other {16) (509
jurisdictions
Tax (charge)eredit for the year/period {5,567) 1,895

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. (n the Spring
Budget 2020, the UK Government announced that from 1 April 2020 the corporation tax rate would remain at
19% (rather than reducing to 17% as previously enacted). This new law was substantively enacted on 17 March
2020. In the Spring Budget 2021, the Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax rate
will increase to 25%. As the proposal to increase the rate to 25% had not been substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, its effects are not included in these financial statements.
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1. Cash and cash equivalents

Group

Cash at banks and on hand

Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
$°000 $’000
16,945 7,922
16,945 7,922

The Group had no short-term deposits as of year end 31 December 2020 (period ended 31 December 2019:
none). Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The Group’s credit risk
on cash and cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties are well established banks with high credit

ratings.

Company

The company had no cash and cash equivalents as of year end 31 December 2020 {period ended 31 December

2019: none).

12, Goodwill

Cost
At 1 July 2019

Recognised on acquisition of subsidiaries during the period.

At 31 December 2019

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019

$'000

141,689

141,689

141,689
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12. Goodwill {continued)

$’000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 141,689
Recognised on acquisition of subsidiaries during the year. -
At 31 December 2020 141,685
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020 141,689

The total carrying value is attributed to one cash generating unit. The Group tests goodwill annually for
impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired, The above goodwill
arose in 2019 following acquisition of Jupiter Topco Limited and Algotrace Limited. in both acquisitions the
goodwill represents the value attributed to the assembly of the workforces acquired.

For the one cash generating unit, we tested for goodwill impairment by quantitatively comparing the fair vatues
of the cash generating unit to it s carrying amount. We estimated the fair value by using an income approach
supported by a discounted cash flow model. This valuation approach considered a number of factors that
include, but are not limited to, prospective financial infermation, growth rates, terminal value, and discount
rates and require us to make certain assumptions and estimates regarding industry economic factors and future
profitability of our business. We also incorporated the use of projected financial information and a discount
rate developed using market participant based assumptions. The cash-flow projections are based on five-year
financial forecasts developed by management that include revenue projections, capital spending trends, and
investment in working capital to support anticipated revenue growth. The selected discount rate considers the
risk and nature of the respective reporting unit’s cash flows and the rates of return market participants would
require to invest their capital in the cash generating unit.

The key assumptions used in our discounted cash flow model are as follows:

* Revenue growth rate for years 1-5: 13% - 18%
* Terminal value growth rate for years 6+: 2%
* Pre-tax discount rate: 10%

Qur analysis resulted in a calculated present value giving $104m headroom over a $408m carrying value of our
goodwill, intangibles, and fixed assets held on the consolidated balance sheet as of year end 2020. In addition,
we considered the sensitivity of the revenue growth assumptions to consider what level of downside in
forecasted performance would result in an present value that was break-even with than the carrying value of
the cash generating unit as of year end 2020. From this sensitivity analysis we concluded that our revenue
projections would have to be reduced by 6% annually in years 1 through 5 to result in a hreak-even valuation.
We believe that, although such scenario is reasonably possible, it is extremely unlikely.

After compileting our annual impairment review of the cash generating unit at year end 2020, we have
concluded that goodwill was not impaired.
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13. Other intangible assets

Group

2019

Cost

At 1 July 2019
Acquisitions
Additions

At 31 December 2019

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 July 2019
Charge for the period

At 31 December 2019

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019

Group

2020

Cost

At 1 January 2020
Additions

At 31 December 2020

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2020
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2020

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020

Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Client Developed
relationships Trademarks technology Software Total
$'000 $'000 $’'000 $000 $'000
219,458 41,737 18,870 5,819 285,884
- - 463 549 1,012
219,458 41,737 19,333 6,368 286,896
5,486 1,043 2,388 215 9,132
5,486 1,043 2,388 215 9,132
213,972 40,694 16,945 6,153 277,764
Client Developed
relationships Trademarks  technology Software Total
$'000 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000
219,458 41,737 19,333 6,368 286,896
- - 2,014 1,996 4,010
219,458 41,737 21,347 8,364 290,908
5,486 1,043 2,388 215 9,132
21,946 4,174 10,015 3,016 39,151
27,432 5,217 12,403 3,231 48,283
192,026 36,520 8,944 5,133 242,623
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13. Other intangible assets (continued)
Carrying value of intangibles

The carrying amount of Client relationships comprises 5192m (2019: $214.0m) in respect of Jupiter Topeo
Limited. These have weighted average remaining lives of 8.8 years,

The carrying amount of Trademarks comprises $36.5m (2019: $40.7m) in respect of Jupiter Topeo Limited.
These have welghted average remaining lives of 8.8 years.

The carrying amount of Developed technology comprises $8.5m (2019: $16.9m) in respect of Jupiter Topco
Limited. These have weighted average remaining lives of 0.9 years,

The carrying amount of Software comprises $2.2m {2019: 51.8m) in respect of Jupiter Topto Limited and
$2.9m (2019: $4.4m) in respect of Algotrace Limited. These have weighted average remaining lives of 1.79
years.

The directors do not consider that an impairment to intangibles has arisen as a result of the impact of Covid
19.

Company
The company had no intangible assets as of yearend 31 December 2020 (2019: no).

14. Property, plant and equipment

Computer Leasehold Office

equipment improvements equipment Total
2019 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cost:
At 1 July 2019 - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiary 1,165 1,082 386 2,633
Additions 221 92 34 347
At 31 December 2019 1,386 1,174 420 2,980
Accumulated depreciation:
At1July 2019 - - - -
Charge for the period 136 35 28 199
At 31 December 2019 136 35 28 199
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019 1,250 1,139 392 2,781
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14. Property, plant and equipment {continued}

2020

Cost:

At 1 January 2020
Additions

At 31 December 2020

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 lanuary 2020
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2020

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020

15, Right of use assets

2019

Cost:

At 1 July 2019
Acquisition of subsidiary
Additions

At 31 December 2019

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 July 2019
Charge for the period

At 31 December 2019

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2019

Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Computer Leasehold Office
equipment improvements equipment Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,386 1,174 420 2,980
377 315 340 1,032
1,763 1,489 760 4,012
136 35 28 199
276 268 228 772
412 303 256 971
1,351 1,186 504 3,041
Vehicle
Property leases leases Total
$’000 $°000 $7000
9,429 688 10,117
949 - 949
10,378 688 11,066
733 91 824
733 91 824
9,645 597 10,242
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15. Right of use assets {continued)

2020

Cost:

At 1 January 2020

Additions
Adjustments

At 31 December 2020

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2020
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2020

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020

Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Vehicle
Property leases leases Total
£'000 $°000 $’000
10,378 688 11,066
1,692 473 2,165
{1,156) 45  {1,111)
10,914 1,206 12,120
733 91 824
3,722 393 4,115
4,455 484 4,939
6,459 722 7,181

Right of use assets relate to property leases held by the Group. The interest charge on the lease liabilities of
5428k (period ended 31 December 2019: $147k) has been included in finance costs (note 9) and the
depreciation charge of 54,115k (period ended 31 December 2019: $824k) in the year is included within

administrative expenses (note 6}.

16. Subsidiarfes

The group consists of a parent company, Quantum Holding Tepco Limited (company), incorporated in the UK,
and a number of subsidiaries and associates held directly and indirectly by Quantum Holding Topeo Limited,
which operate and are incorporated around the world. The company’s separate financial statements included

in this report lists details of the interests in subsidiaries.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the group to access or use assets and settle liabilities.

Information about the composition of the Group at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
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16. Subsidiaries {(continued)

Quantum Holding Topco Limited
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Quantum Holding Topco Limited has investments in the following subsidiary undertakings:

Subsidlary undertaking name

Quantum Holding Fince timited
Quantum Holding Mideo 1 Limited
Quantum Holding Midco 2 Limited
Quantum Holdeo US Bidco Corp
Quantum Holding UK Bidco Limited
lupiter Topto Limited

Jupiter Midco 1 Limited

Jupiter Mideo 2 Limited

lupiter Holdco Limited

Experior Group Limited

Experior Limited

Qualitast Group UK Limited
Jupiter Bideo Ltd

tbase Operations Corp

QualiTest Ltd

QualiTest Partnership Ltd

Electronic Nation LLC
Ibase of Fairfield LLC
TCL Group Limited

Qualitest Software Testing Limited

Qualitest Software Testing Indla Private
Ltd

TCL U5 Corporation
Qualitest UK 4 Limited
Qualitest DC Ro S.R.L

Q-TEST PORTUGAL SOFTWARE,
UNIPESSOAL LDA

QT SOFTWARE TESTING MEXICO

Algotrace Ltd

*Held directly by the Company,

Place of
incorporation

UK
UK
UK
us
UK
Uk
UK
UK
UK
UK
Uk
UK
Israel
us
Israel
Israel
us
us
UK
UK

India

us
UK
Romania

Portugal

Mexico

|sraed

Principal
activity

Holding
Halding
Holding
Holding
Holding
Holding
Holding
Holding
Holding
Holding
Trading
Trading
Holding
Frading
Trading
Trading
Dormant
Trading
Helding

Trading

Trading

Dormant
Trading
Trading

Trading

Trading

Trading

Registered office address

1 Appold Stree, Longon, England, EC2A 2UT

1 Appoltd Street, London, England, EC2A 2UT

1 Appold Street, London, England, EC2A 2UT

1 Post Rd. 3rd floor, Fairfield, Connecticut, 06824, USA

1 Appold Street, London, England, EC2A 2UT

1 Appoid Street, London, England, ECIA ZUYT

1 Appold Street, London, England, EC2A 2UT

1 Appold Street, London, England, EC2A 2UT

1 Appold Street, London, England, ECZA 2UT

1 Appold Street, London, England, EC2A 2UT

1 Appoid Street, London, England, EC2A 2UT

1 Appold Street, London, England, EC2A 2UT

Deniv Park, 21d Yagia, Kapayim 5t, Petach-Tikva, 49130, Israel
Greentree Drive, Sulte 101, Dover, Delaware 19904 USa
Deniv Park, 21d Yagla, Kapayim 5t, Petach-Tikva, 45130, [srael
Deniv Park, 21d Yagia, Kapaylm 5t, Petach-Tikva, 49130, israel

1 Post Rd. 3rd fivor, Fairfield, Connecticut, 06824, USA
1 Post Rd. 3rd floor, Fairfleld, Connecticut, 06824, USA
1 Appold Street, London, England, EC2A 2UT
1 Appold Street, Londan, England, EC2A 2UT

Level 15, Concorde Tower, UB City, 1 Vittal Mallya Road,
Bengaluru, 560001, india.

1 Post Rd. 3rd floow, Fairfield, Connecticut, 06824, LISA
1 Appold Street, London, England, EC2A 2UT
Bucurestl Sectorul 1, Strada Dlaconu Coresl, Nr, 53, Romania

Lagoas Park, Building One, 2740-265, Porto Salvo

Gara Herastrau 48, 11th Floor, Bucharest, Romania

Deniv Park, 21d Yagia, Kapayim St, Petach-Tikva, 49130, Israel

Holding

100%*
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
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16. Subsidlaries (continued)

Subsidiary companies’ audit exemption

The Company has provided the following subsidiaries with a parental guarantee in accordance with section
479C of the Companies Act. As such, advantage has been taken by the audit exemption available for the
following subsidiary companies conferred by section 479A of the Companies Act relating to the audit of
individual financial statements:

Subsidiary undertaking name Registration number
Quantum Holding Finco Limited 12077487
Quantum Holding Midco 2 Limited 12077691
Quantum Holding UK Bidco Limited 12077725
Jupiter Midco 2 Limited 10238800
Jupiter Holdco Limited 10238811
Experior Group Limited 05419369
Experior Limited 04481216
Qualitest Group UK Limited 04394772
TCL Group Limited 05882567
Qualitest Software Testing Limited 03929849
Qualitest UK 4 Limited 04203893

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for:

a. ensuring that the company keeps adequate accounting records which comply with section 386 of the
Companies Act 2006; and

b. preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the
company at 31 December 2020 and of its income statement for the year then ended in accordance
with the requirement of section 394 of the Companies Act 2006, and which otherwise comply with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to financial statements so far as applicable to
the company.
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17. Trade and other receivables

2020 2019

$000 $’000
Amount receivable for the sale ot goods 32,778 31,203
Allowance for doubtful debts (967) {1,002)

31,811 30,261
Accrued fncome 5,487 10,656
Other debtors 627 237
Prepayments 2,689 1,626
Total current 40,614 42,780
Rent deposits 680 732
Total nen-current 680 732

Trade receivables
The specified credit terms for Company customers are typically 30-60 days.

Out of total trade receivables as of December 31, 2020, $7,733k (2019: $8,694k) was overdue but not provided
for as a doubtful debt. Management reguiarly reviews receivables and assesses recoverability. The above
provision has been deemed adequate.

The Company has contracted, through its subsidiary, trade receivables factoring transactions with a bank,
whereby the Company sells part of its trade receivables, in order to increase liquidity in the group. As of
December 31, 2020, the factoring transaction amounts to $4,953k (2019: $2,098k). As the facility is non-
recourse the amount is not within the receivables balance.

Accrued income has reduced from $10,656k to $5,487k in the prior year due to timing differences in billing.
All non-current receivables are due within five years from the end of the reporting period.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit |osses which use a lifetime loss
allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets, The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales and the historical credit losses experienced, The current and forward tooking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of customers to settle the receivables are also considered. The
Group have assessed that there is no material adjustment to provisions required, to reflect the lifetime
expected loss. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the period is the fair value of trade and other
receivables. The Directors estimate that the carrying value of receivables is an approximation of their fair value.
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17. Trade and other recelvables (continued)

Parent Company only

Amounts owed by group undertakings
Loan notes receivable

Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2013
$'000 $'000
3,515 2,570
2,060 161
5,575 2,731

The amounts owed by group undertakings bear no interest. The loan notes receivable bear interest at 10% per

annum. There is no accrued interest as at year end.

18. Borrowings
Group

Unsecured borrowing at amortised cost
Priority shares
Loan notes

Secured borrowing at amortised cost
Bank loans

Total borrowings

Amount due for settlement within 12 months

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

2020 2019

$'000 $'000
141,005 141,005
104,430 104,430
181,844 169,629
427,279 415,064

18,284 22,871

408,995 392,193
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18. Borrowings (continued)

Group

Analysis of borrowings by currency:

Priority shares
Loan notes

Bank loans
Arrangement fees

Group

Analysis of borrowings by currency:

Priority shares
Loan notes

Bank loans
Arrangement fees

Parent Company only

Priority shares
Accrued interest

Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Israeli us 2019

Sterling New Shekels dollars Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
- - 141,005 141,005
- - 104,430 104,430
17,052 21,600 136,658 175,350
- - {5,721) {5,721)
17,052 21,600 376,412 415,064

Israeli us 2020

Sterling New Shekels doliars Total

$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
- 141,005 141,005
- - 104,430 104,430
17,698 23,212 145,511 186,421
- - (4,577) {4,577)
17,698 23,212 386,369 427,279

2020 2019
$'000 $°000

141,005 141,005

17,896 3,421

158,501 144,426

Priority shares are equity instruments that have been classified as debt. Interest is payable on these shares at
a rate of 10% per annum. These shares do not carry voting rights. In an Exit of Default Event all the Priority
shares in issue will be immediately redeemable including any accrued and/or unpaid dividend, Repayment of
the priority shares to the owners and the related accrued interest is prioritised over the payments to other

equity shareholders,
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18. Borrowings (continued)

The bank loans balance above is shown net of arrangement fees of $4,577k {2019: $5,721k) which will continue
to he amortised over the 6-year term of the financing facility.

The principal features of the group’s borrowings are as follows.
The group's principal bank ioans are comprised 6 different facilities:
1) Asecured loan of GBP 13m {Facility B1)
2) Asecured foan of ILS 74.7m (Facility B1)
3) Asecured loan of USD 123m (Facility B2}

These loans were undertaken to fund the acquisition of Jupiter Topco Limited. These loans were all taken
out on 3rd October 2019, There are no capital repayments required on these facilities.

4) Asecured loan of $30m denominated in USD {Acquisition/Capex facility 1}
5) Asecured loan of $80m denominated in USD {Acquisition/Capex facility 2)
6) Asecured loan of 520m denominated in USD {Revolving facility)

All of the above loans form part of a Senior Funding Agreement and are secured by a floating charge over
certain of the group's assets.

The weighted average interest rates paid during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Pericd ended 31
December 2019} were as follows:

Year ended 31 Period ended 31

December 2020 December 2019

% %

Bank loans 5.8 7.1

Effective 31 December 2019, the Group entered into the following interest rate and currency swaps:
¢ USD 46,000,000 - Pay: 1.7280% / Receive: USD 6M LIBOR - IR Swap - Maturity Date: 2022-12-31
e Cross-Currency Swap - Pay ILS 6.320% / Receive USD 6M Libor + 625bps - Maturity Date: 2022-12-31
¢ Cross-Currency Swap - Pay ILS 6.365% / Receive USD 6M Libor + 625bps - Maturity Date: 2022-12-31

In the year the swaps made a gain of $846k (2019: loss $831k) and were cash settled as at 31 December 2020,
The swaps are settled every b manths with a final maturity date of 31 December 2022,

Revolving credit facility

The Group has available drawings under the Revolving Credit Facility of $20.0m (2019: $20.0m), of which $6.0m
{2019: $13.7m) was drawn down and remained in place as at the period end.

Included within note 32 are details of the new Senior Funding Agreement signed after the year end.
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19. Deferred tax

The following are the deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group and movements thereon during
the current and prior reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities

{Credit) to Balance as of

Acquisition of Created on income December 31,
subsidiary consclidation statement 2019
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Provisions 5,357 - (803) 4,554
Creation of intangibles on consolidation - 48,361 {1,320) 47,041
Foreign exchange adjustments 24 - - 24
5,381 48,361 {2,123) 51,619
Created on (Credit)to  Balance as of
consclidatlon income December 31,
$'000 statement 2020
$’000 $'000
Provision at start of periced 47,041 4,578 51,619
Provisions - 2,105 2,105
Creation of intangibles on consolidation {733) - (733)
Foreign exchange adjustments - 665 665
46,308 7,348 53,656

No deferred tax liability is recognised on temporary differences of $2.8m (2019: $4.5m) relating to the
unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the timings of the reversal of these
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

There is unprovided deferred tax on losses of $5,289k (2019: losses of 5895k,
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20. Trade and other payables
Current

Employees and other payroll liabilities
Accrued expenses

Other payables

Trade payables

Contract liabilities

Deferred consideration

Corporation tax

Total current

Non-current
Accrued interest

Total non-current

Total trade and other payables

Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
$'000 $'000
11,326 8,879
9,089 13,381
3,520 1,708
2,633 5,085
573 147
444 2,172
(1,416) 299
26,169 31,671
30,350 5,743
30,350 5,743
56,519 37,414

Trade payables and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs.
The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 30 to 60 days. The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms. The directors consider
that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.

Parent Company only

Accruals

2020
$'000
15

2019
$'000

15
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21, Provisions

Severance Dilapidations Other Total

$'000 $’000 $000  $°000

1July 2019 - - - -
Acquisitions 1,689 533 610 2,832
Charged to income statement 163 - 16 179
31 December 2019 1,852 533 626 3,011
Classified as current 1,852 - - 1,852
Classified as non-current - 533 626 1,159
Total 1,852 533 626 3,011
Severance Dilapidations Other Total

$'000 $000  $'000  $'000

1 January 2020 1,852 533 626 3,011
Charged to income statement 302 . 11 313
31 December 2020 2,154 533 637 3,324
Classified as current 2,154 - - 2,154
Classified as non-current - 833 637 1,170
Total 2,154 533 637 3,324

The provision for severance pay is a statutory requirement in Israel and has been calculated using actuarial
estimates provided by a qualified actuary. The presentvalue of the defined benefit ljability and the related cost
of current and past service were measured using the projected unit ¢credit method.

The provision for dilapidations is in respect of property lease that contain requirements for the premises to be
returned in their original state on the conclusion of the lease terms.

The ‘other’ provisions relate to existing legal disputes within the Group. See note 3.14 for details on accounting
policies with respect to provisions,

These provisions are estimates because actual costs and timing of future cash flows are dependent on future
events. Any difference between expectations and the future Nability will be accounted for when such
determination is made.
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22, Share capital

2019 2019 2020 2020
Issued and fully paid: Number $  Number S
A Ordinary shares ot 50.01 each {one vote per share) 763,241 7,632 763,241 7,632
B Ordinary shares of $0.01 each (one vote per share) 44,222 442 44,222 442
C1 Ordinary shares of $0.01 each {no voting rights) 141,258 1,413 152,309 1,523
D Ordinary shares of 50.01 each {no voting rights) 150,583 1,506 163,501 1,635
Share premiurm - 1,099,161 - 1,113,202
Total 1,099,304 1,110,154 1,123,273 1,124,434

All the above share classes allow the  holder to participate in dividends, and to share in the proceeds of
winding up the company in proportion to the number of shares held according to the company’s articles of
association.

23. Acquisitions

lupiter Topto Limited {Qualitest} — Share purchase

On 3 October 2019 the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Jupiter Topco Limited (QualiTest). The
company is a leading provider of tailored solutions in software testing, quality assurance and test consultancy
in the US, UK, Israel and India, providing performance and functional testing, bespoke automation tools and
digital transformation assurance services, The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below.
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23.  Acquisitions (continued)

Satisfied by:

Cash 310,450
{less cash acquired) (7,376)
Equity and debt instruments (see below for breakdown) 17,335
Borrowings settled 46,695
Total purchase conslderation 367,104

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

Cash consideration 357,145
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired (7,376)
349,769

Acquisition-related costs {inclyded in administrative expenses} amount to $16.0m,

Qualitest contributed all the revenue of the Group from the date of acquisition until the end of the period. If
the acquisition had occurred at the start of the financial period, 1 July 2019, consolidated pro-forma revenue
and loss for the period would have been $111,167k and $38,450k respectively,

The goodwill recognised on the transaction primarily relates to ‘assembly of workforce’, which is not a
separately recognised intangible.

Equity and debt instruments issued:

Instrument 5’000
Priority shares - Quantum Holding Topco Limited 13,715
A Ordinary shares - Quantum Holding Topco Limited 22
B Ordinary shares - Quantum Holding Topco Limited 33
C Ordinary shares - Quantum Holding Topco Limited 92
D Ordinary shares - Quantum Holding Topco Limited 23
Loan notes - Quantum Holding Topce Limited 2,952
Loan notes - Quantum Holding Finco Limited 498
Total 17,335

The above debt and equity instruments have been valued at their issue price.

AlgoTrace Limited - Share purchase

On 24 December 2019 the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Algotrace Limited, a company
incorporated in israel. Algotrace specialises in and develops test autoration software.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in
the table beiow.
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23.  Acquisitions {continued)

Satisfied by:

Cash

{less cash acquired)

Equity {see below for breakdown)
Contingent consideration

Total purchase consideration

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration
Less: cash and cash equivalent balances acquired

Equity and debt instruments issued:

Instrument

B QOrdinary shares - Quantum Holding Topco Limited
A Qrdinary shares - Quantum Helding Topco Limited
Priority shares - Quantum Holding Topco Limited
Total

Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

$°000
3,225
(118)
528
403

4,038

3,225
(118)

3,107

Fair Value
5000

292

65

171

528

The A and B Ordinary shares have been valued using a Monte Carlo simulation model based on a 6 year vesting
period. See note 27 for further details on methodology and assumptions. The Prigrity shares have been valued
by discounting future expected cashflows by the groups weighted-average cost of capital,

Acguisition-related costs (included in administrative expenses) amount to $0.5m.

Algotrace contributed no revenues nor profit to the Group from the date of acquisition until the end of the
period. If the acquisition had occurred at the start of the financial period, 1 July 2019, consolidated pro-forma
revenue and loss for the period would have been 352,577k and $29,166k respectively.

The goodwill recognised on the transaction primarily relates to ‘assembly of workforce’, which is not a

separately recognised intangible.
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24, Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Loss for the financial year/period

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {note 14)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15)
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 13)

Amortisation cf loan fees

Increase in provisions

Finance costs

Income tax expense (credit)

Share scheme expense

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Decrease (Increase) in receivables
Decrease in payables

Cash provided by {used in) operations

Quantum Holding Topco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Year ended 31

December Period ended 31
2020 December 2019
$’000 $'000
{63,194) (35,227)
773 199
4,115 824
39,151 9,132
1,144 -
313 179
36,884 11,491
7,750 {1,895)
2,768 -
29,704 (15,297)
2,218 {637)
(3,776) (9,746)
28,146 {25,680}

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash. The group did not have an overdraft as at 31 December 2020 {2019:
no). The carrying amount of these assets is approximately equal to their fair value.
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25. Lease liability

Future minimum lease payments as at 31 December are as follows:

2020 2019

$’000 $'000
Carrying amount of liability due within 1 year 3,025 2,780
Carrying amount of liability due after 1 year 4,525 7,595
Total Carrying amount of liability 7,550 10,375
Due within 1 year 3,308 2,780
Due hetween 1 - 5 years 4,242 7,231
Due after 5 years - 364
Total lease liability 7,550 10,375

On acquisition of Jupiter Topco Limited on 3 October 2019, the Group acquired right-of-use assets of $10,117k
and a corresponding lease liability of $10,151k. The lease liability is unwound in line with contractual rental
payments, with an imputed interest rate of 5.1%,

26. Financial instruments

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerns
white maximising the return toe shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity bafance,

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (borrowings disclosed in note 18 after deducting cash
and bank balances) and equity of the Group (comprising issued capital, reserves, retained earnings and non-
controlling interests),

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Significant accounting policles

Details of the significant accaunting policies and methods adopted [including the criteria for recognition, the
basis of measurement and the bases for recognition of income and expenses) for each class of financial asset,
financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3.
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26. Financial Instruments [¢continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

2020 2019
$'000 $°000
Financlal assets
Cash and bank balances 16,945 7,922
Loans and receivables 31,811 30,261
Financial liabilities 434,489 425,870

Accounts payable and borrowings

Categories of financial Instruments
Flnancial risk management objectives

The Group Finance function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and
international financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the
Group. These risks include market risk {including currency risk and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk,
liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using natural hedges against these risk exposures,

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
and interest rates (see below).

Forelgn currency risk management

The Group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations arise, At the time of this report the Group was still reviewing its risk policy on using forward
foreign exchange contracts or similar financial instruments. The Group has denominated its borrowings in
currencies which match with the currencies it trades in to create a “natural hedge”.
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26.  Financial Instruments (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
2019 $’000 $'000
Israeli New Shekel 17,457 22,989
US Dallars 12,263 383,545
British Pound 7,064 19,222
Other 1,399 114
Total 38,183 425,870

Assets Liabilities
2020 $'000 $'000
Israeli New Shekel 21,823 23,904
US Dollars 17,944 244,071
British Pound 4,964 18,234
Other 4,025 163
Total 48,756 286,372

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Group borrow funds at floating interest rates.
The Group closely monitors the impact of changing interest rates on the bank covenant and is reviewing its risk
policy and the use of derivative contracts.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on its financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that 2 counterparty will defauit on its contractuai obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and
obtaining sufficient collateral where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults. The Group uses publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its major
customers. The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continugusly monitored and
the aggregate value of transactions conclutied is spread amongst approved counterparties.,
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26, Financial Instruments (continued)

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and, where
appropriate, credit guarantee insurance cover is purchased. The Group does ot have any significant credit risk
exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics. The Group
defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities, Concentration of credit risk
to any other counterparty did not exceed ten per cent of gross monetary assets at any time during the year,

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the end of the reporting period is $40.6m {2019: $42.8m) with respect to accounts receivable and
contract assets.

The group applies the IFRS 8 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a

lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due, The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types of contracts. The group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets. The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 24
months before 31 December 2020 and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

Current -90days [ >90 days
Higher risk nil 25%
Normal risk nil 15%
Low risk nil nil

Liguldity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has established
an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adeguate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoting forecast and
actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Details of additional
undrawn facilities that the Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk are set out below,

Liguidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its nan-derivative financial liabilities
with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
finandcial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. As disclosed in the note 18 the Group uses swap facilities to fix the rate
of interest on its borrowings with lenders. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount Is derived from interest rate curves at the balance sheet date.
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26. Financial Instruments (continued)

The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay.

Weighted
average
effective
interest Llessthanl
rate year 5+ years Total
% $'000 $'000 $°000
31 December 2019
Non-interest bearing - 5,085 - 5,085
Variable interest rate instruments 7.1 - 175,350 175,350
Fixed interest rate instruments 10 9,173 236,262 245,435
8.7 14,258 411,612 425,870
Weighted
average
effective
Interest Lessthanl
rate year 5+ years Total
9% $'000 $'000 $°000
31 December 2020
Non-interest bearing - 2,633 - 2,633
Variable interest rate instruments 5.8 - 186,421 186,421
Fixed interest rate instruments 10.0 97,318 - 97,318
7.2 99,951 186,421 286,372

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for both non-derivative financial assets and
liabilities is subject to change if changes in varfable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the reporting date. The Group has access to financing facilities as described below, of which
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26. Financial Instruments (continued)

$111m {2019: $115m) were unused at the balance sheet date, The Group expects to meet its other obligations
from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets

Financing facilities
2020 2019
$m $m
Secured bank loan facilities with maturity dates through to 2026
and which may be extended by mutual agreement:
- amount used 186 175
- amount unused 111 115
297 290

Included within note 32 are detaiis of the new Senior Funding Agreement signed after the year end.

27. Share based payments

During the period the group operated a Sweet Equity Scheme comprised of C and D Ordinary Shares in Quantum
Hofding Topco Limited, the indirect parent of the group. Under IFRS 2, the share-based payments granted must
be measured on a "fair value" basis as at the grant date of the awards and the relevant charge entered into the
income statement,

As at 31 December 2020, 163,501 (2019: 150,583) C and D shares were in issue, The fair value of these shares
have been assessed at $17,255k {2019: $15,873k) using a Monte Carlo simulation model based on a 5 year
{2019: 6 year) vesting period and an assumption that only 70% will vest, Within administrative expenses in the
income statement there is a charge of $2,763k (period ended 31 December 2019: $657k) which represents the
fair value of the scheme being charged straight-line over the vesting period. For the purposes of accounting
treatment the shares are considered to be equity settled. The liability is within amounts owed to parent.

The inputs to the model and fair value charge are:

2019
Vesting period 6 years from grant
Assumed Risk-free rate 1.34%-1.45%
Dividend Yield 0.00%
Volatility 32.12%-35.23%
Fair value of shares $15,873,000
Vesting assumption 70%
Granted in pericd 150,583
Charge in perlod $657,000
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27. Share based payments (continued)

2020
Vesting period 5-6 years from grant
Assumed Risk-free rate 0.14%-1 45%
Dividend Yield 0.00%
Volatility 32.12%-45.69%
Fair value of shares $17,255,000
Vesting assumption 70%
Granted in period 12,918
Charge in period 52,763,000

28. Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions between the group and its
associates are disclosed below. In accordance with FRS 101, the Company has taken an exemption in the
preparation of these financial statements based on the requirements in 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures, to
disclose related party transactions entered into between two or more members of a group, provided that any
subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is wholly owned by such 2 member,

Aggregate directors’ remuneration

The Company does not directly renumerate directors. The total amounts for directors’ remuneration through
the group in the financial period were as follows:

Year ended
31 December Perlod ended 31
2020 December 2019

$'000 $'000

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind 635 1,876
Pension contributions 7 2
642 1,878

During the year the highest paid Director received remuneration totalling $375k {period ended 31 December
2019: $1,802k}. No contributions were made in respect of money purchase schemes.

One director was a member of a money purchase scheme, Contributions into the scheme totalled $9k (2019:
52k},

Other related party transactions

During the period the group made foreign currency purchases to the value of $15.7m {period ended 31
December 2019: $2.7m) from a supplier which shares the same ultimate parent company and ultimate
controlling party as the group. The transactions were conducted on normal arm’s length commerctal terms.,
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29, Controlling party

The Company's ultimate parent Company and ultimate controlling party is Atlantic lnvestments Holdings
Limited, a Company incorporated in England, The Company's immediate controlling party is BE VI Nominees
Limited. Copies of the ultimate parent company’s and immediate controlling party’s financial statements of
Quantum Holding Topco Limited are available from Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy, Cardiff CF14 3uU2.

The parent undertaking of the smallest and largest group is Quantum Holding Topco Limited, a Company
incorporated in Great Britain, 1 Appold Street, London, England, EC2ZA 2UT. Copies of the group financial
statements of Quantum Holding Topco Limited are available from Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy,
Cardiff CF14 3UZ. The Company's immediate controlling party is Quantum Holding Finco Limited.

30. Company result for the year/period

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company has elected not to present its own income
statement {period ended 31 December 2015: no) nor cashflow for the period (period ended 31 December 2019:
no). The company reported a loss of $14,428k for the year ended 31 December 2020 (period ended 31
December 2019: loss of $3,891k).

The auditors’ remuneration for audit and other services is borne by fellow group companies and is disclosed in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements. No recharge is made to the company (period ended 31
December 2019: no}.

The Directors of the company are paid by fellow group companies and their remuneration is included in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements. No recharge is made to the company (period ended 31 December
2019: no). The company has no employees (period ended 31 December 2019: no).

31. Investment ln subsidlaries

2020 2019
$'000 $°000
Cost
At 1January / 1 July 138,541 -
Investment in year/period - 139,541
Carrying amount
At 31 December 139,541 139,541

The investrment relates to 100% of the share capital of Quantum Holding Topco Limited’s sole directly held
subsidiary Quantum Holding Finco Limited,

The investments in subsidiaries have been assessed for recoverability using the same underlying assumptions
for the goodwill and intangibles impairment review, concluding that no impairment Is required.
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32. Post balance sheet events

Subsequent to the year end, the Group made three acquisitions as it looks to expand its global quality assurance
tapabilities.

e On 18 February 2021, the Group acquired QA Infotech through the purchase of the entire share
capital of QA Infotech Software Services Private Limited (India) and QA Infotech, Inc (US).
On 25 March 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Comply Limited (Israel).
On 16 April 2021, the Group acquired the trade and assets of Olenick & Associates, Inc (US) as well as
100% of the share capital of Olenick Global Limited {Northern Ireland) and Olenick Glabal S.A
{Argentina).

In addition, on 15 March 2021, the Group also successfully refinanced its principal bank facilities through the
full repayment of Facility B1 (GBP), Facility B1 (ILS), Facility B2, Acquisition / Capex facility 1, Acquisition / Capex
facility 2 and the Revolving facility (see note 18 for details of the Group’s debt facilities as at 31 December
2020).

The new arrangements comprise a $211 million (USD) B1 term loan facility, a £19 million (GBP) B2 term loan
facility, a $34.6 million (USD) B3 Euro redenamination term loan facility, a $129 million multicurrency
acquisition / capex facifity and a $40 million multicurrency revolving credit facility, The new facilities mature in
March 2028 and will help support the Group'’s future organic growth and allow the Group to pursue further
acquisition opportunities,
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